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In this atlas the lettered folios contain descriptions of the manner in which the towns were established and the statutes
fixing the various boundary lines, together with detailed descriptions of the lines as they exist at the present time.

Folios 1 and 2 are plans showing the boundary lines of the towns herein described. The locations of the corners
or points of intersection of the boundary lines have been determined by triangulation. The town lines are shown in heavy
broken lines, and the general scheme of triangulation by which their locations were determined is shown in light lines. Lines
extending toward stations beyond the limits of the triangulation sheets have letters of reference to show to what stations they
are directed.

Folios 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and ¢ give the geographical positions in latitude and longitude of all the corners and the
principal stations used as points of control, together with the azimuths, back azimuths, true bearings and distances between
them. Following these are folios giving the names of the triangulation stations, with descriptions of a portion of them and
of the corners, together with a topographical sketch of the vicinity of each corner. An index to the description of each corner
is given in the left-hand column of the position table.

The system of numbering adopted in describing the boundary between each two adjoining towns runs from one three-
town corner or four-town corner to the next, increasing from north to south, or from east to west. The principal triangulation
stations are shown by name as well as number.

Natural or water boundaries are taken from U. S. Coast and Geodetic Survey charts, or from actual surveys plotted |
on a large scale and reduced to the scale of this plan. Copies of the large scale plans are on file at the office of the
Commission.

The triangulation of this survey is based on that of the U. S. Coast and Geodetic Survey, whose officers have given
us material assistance in the adjustment of the triangulation system.

The projection 1s based on the “Clarke Spheroid” and the astronomical data adopted by the U. S. Coast and Geo-
detic Survey in 188o0.

The usual form of conventional signs to represent the topography in the vicinity of each bound is adopted, and corre-
sponds substantially with the style adopted by the topographical conference held in Washington, D. C,, in 1892.

The principal field work for this group was executed under the direction of Eugene E. Peirce and James B. Tolley,
in 1892 and 1893. The present bounds were examined, additional points located, and topographical descriptions revised in
1904.

Additional information and data pertaining to the survey may be obtained upon application at the office of the

Commission.

Woopwarp EMER '
s 2 ) Harbor and

GeorGce E. Swmith, ' Land

< Commissioners.
Henry J. SkerrFINGTON, |

Frank W. Hobcpon, Chief Engineer. | |
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HAVERHILL LAWRENCE
ANDOVER —— BOXFORD MASSACHUSETTS MIDDLETON —— NORTH ANDOVER

LYNNFIELD — METHUEN NORTH READING —— READING —— WILMINGTON

GENERALSDESCRIF TIONS,
ANDOVER.

The first mention of Andover occurs in the Massachusetts Colony Records under date of May 22, 1646, at which time

Cutshamache, an Indian, acknowledged the sale of certain lands known as “Cochichawick” or “ Andiver,” bounded north-
erly by Merrimac river and including, besides its present area, the town of North Andover and the portion of Lawrence
lying south of Merrimac river. '

On May 26, 1658, about fifteen acres of meadow-land near Shawshine river, abutting on Billerica, was set off by the
General Court to Andover.

A part of Andover was set off to Middleton June 20, 1728; a part to Lawrence April 17, 1847; and a part was set
off to form the town of North Andover April 7, 1855.

BOXFORD.

On the petition of the inhabitants of Rowley Village, a part of Rowley was incorporated into a township August 12,
1685, being first mentioned as Boxford September 14, 1694, in an act for the regulation of the taxes. :

On June 20, 1728, a part was set off to the new town of Middleton; on March 21, 1856, a part was set off to Grove-
land; and on April 15, 1897, a small part was set off to Georgetown.

On June 10, 1808, a part of Rowley, including the estate of Samuel Spofford, was annexed; and on March 7, 1846,
a part of Ipswich was annexed.

| BN R T

On May 13, 1640, the Governor, Deputy Governor and Mr. Winthrop Senior, were directed to grant to Mr. Ward
and Newberry men a plantation at Patucket or Coijchawick, provided they return answer within three weeks from the 21st.
present, and that they build there before the next Court, and on June 2, 1641, a committee was appointed “to set out the
bounds between Salsberry and Pantucket, ali: Haverell. They are to determine the bounds which Mr. Ward & his company
are' to enjoy as a town or village.”

Portions of the boundaries of the town were defined in 1651, 1654, 1664 and 1667, and were perfected by the General
Court May 12, 1675. The town originally extended from the Merrimac river northerly for a distance of about 10 or 12 miles
into what 1s now New Hampshire. It included the larger portion of the present territory of Lawrence and Methuen.

On May 23, 1650, an island in Merrimac river was granted to Haverhill. On December 8, 1725, the western part of
the town of Haverhill, with lands adjoining, were set off and constituted the new township of Methuen.

Haverhill was established as a city March 10, 1869, the act of incorporation being accepted by the town May 15 of
the same year.

On January 4, 1897, Bradford was annexed to Haverhill by chapter 365 of the Acts of 1896. Bradford was originally
set off from the town of Rowley May 27, 1668, and was first mentioned by name in a tax act dated October 13, 1675. On
March 8, 1850, the easterly part of Bradford was incorporated as the town of Groveland.

LAWRENCE.

Parts of Andover and Methuen were incorporated as the town of Lawrence April 17, 1847, and the town became a
city March 21, 1853, the town accepting the act of incorporation March 29th of the same year.

On April 4, 1854, part of Methuen was annexed, and on February 4, 1879, parts of Andover and North Andover
were annexed.

LYNNFIELD.
On July 3, 1782, the North Parish of Lynn was erected into the district of Lynnfield. The district was made a town
February 28, 1814.
On May 27, 1857, when the bounds between Lynnfield and North Reading were established, part of each town was
annexed to the other, and the act was accepted by the town of Lynnfield November 3, 1857, and by North Reading January 7, 1858.

No material changes have been made in the boundaries since its early incorporation.

METHUEN.

The western part of the town of Haverhill, with the lands adjoining, a strip about 1 1-2 miles wide next to Dracut
line, was erected into the town of Methuen December 8, 1725, and included a considerable area now within the State of New
Hampshire. It extended along the Merrimac river “ 10 miles and 40 pole.”

The part of Lawrence lying north of the Merrimac river was set off from Methuen by chapter 190 of the Acts of 1847,

incorporating Lawrence, and a subsequent act, passed April 4, 1854, set off another part of Methuen to the same town.

FOLIO B TOWN BOUNDARY SURVEY
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MIDDLETON.

The town of Middleton was incorporated June zo, '1728, being comprised of parts of Andover, Boxford, Salem and

Topéﬁeld. The boundaries of the town stand to-day practically as described in the act of incorporation.

NORTH ANDOVER.

The eastern part of Andover was set off and incorporated as the town of North Andover April 7, 1855, and on Feb.
4, 1879, about one hundred and six acres were set off to the city of Lawrence.

NORTH READING.

The northerly portion of Reading was incorporated as the town of North Reading March 22, 1853. On May 27, 1857,
when the line between Lynnfield and North Reading was adjusted, a part of each town was annexed to the other.

READING.

An additional grant of land was made to the town of Lynn by the General Court Sept. 9, 1639, for an inland
plantation. This settlement was known as Linn Village, and included Reading, South Reading and North Reading. On May
29, 1644, 1t was ordered that Linn Village be called Redding, and the Court Records state that the bounds between Wooborne
and Linn Village (called Redding) were settled on the same date.

On Sept. 25, 1730, the westerly part was set off to form a part of the town of Wilmington; on Dec. 21, 1734, a part
was set off to Stoneham ; on Feb. 25, 1812, the First or South Parish of Reading was incorporated as the town of South

Reading, now Wakefield; on March 22, 1853, the town of North Reading was set off.

WILMINGTON.

The northeasterly part of Woburn, known as ¢ Goshen™ and the westerly part of Reading were erected into a township
by the name of Wilmington Sept. 25, 1730. In the act of incorporation the western boundary is described as following the
Billerica line ‘including Abraham Jacques, his farm, and so to run from thence on Billerica line one hundred rods farther,”
etc.; this portion of the act although accepted by the General Court as the divisional line, occasioned more or less dispute and
three years later (April 12, 1733) a petition of the selectmen of Billerica was presented to the General Court, stating that
under a clause in the incorporative act, the town of Wilmington claimed certain land in the town of Billerica, being part of a
tract called Mr. Jacques' farm, “although it was never intended by the Court, nor so much as asked for by the inhabitants
that any part of Billerica should be set to Wilmington, but only that part of Mr. Jacques’ farm that lay in the town of
Woburn.” The petitioners prayed that the Court order that the town of Billerica be “continued in the uninterrupted posses-
sion of their ancient bounds,” presumably a straight line from the present corner 1 of Tewksbury and Wilmington southerly,
passing through the present corner. of Billerica, Burlington and Wilmington. The town of Wilmington opposed this petition,
but on June 13, 1733, the General Court decided that the whole of Jacques’ farm was in the town of Wilmington. On

Dec. 27, 1737, the farms of John Beard and others adjoining the Jacques farm were set off from Billerica to Wilmington.

BOUNDARY LINES.

Massachusetts-New Hampshire Line. — The State line which forms the northerly boundary of this group of towns
was fixed by the King in Council under date of Aug. 5, 1740, being surveyed and marked under order of Governor Belcher
by George Mitchell and Richard Hazen in 1741. It was re-surveyed and-marked by Commissioners representing the two States
between the years 1885 and 1898, and the line as marked was later ratified and adopted by the respective States,— Massachu-
setts by Chapter 369 of the Acts of 1899, and New Hampshire by chapter 115 of the Acts of 1gor1.

Andover-Dracut Line. — Follows the Merrimac river, being defined by the order of the Court incorporating Dracut
Feb. 26, 1702,

Andover-Lawrence Line.— The part of the line west of corner 1 was defined by chapter 190 of the Acts of 1847.
The part southerly of corner 1 was defined by chapter 11 of the Acts of 1879.

Andover-Methuen Line. — Defined by chapter 12 of the Laws of 1725.

Andover-North Andover Line.— The part of the line northwest of corner 1 was defined by chapter 11 of the Acts of
1879, and the part southerly of corner 1 by chapter 150 of the Acts of 1853.

Andover-North Reading Line.— Defined by chapter 250 of the Acts of 1904.

Andover-Tewksbury Line. — Defined by chapter 373 of the Acts of 1903.

TOWN BOUNDARY SURVEY FOLIO C
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Andover-Wilmington Line. — This line i1s a part of the old Andover— Woburn line; no definite statute has been found
describing it but, as marked upon the ground, it agrees with the perambulation records and the official map of 1830 on file
in the Archives.

Atkinson (N. H.-Haverhill Line. — Defined by chapter 369 of the Acts of 1899.

Billerica-Wilmington Line. — A portion of this line was established by chapter 2 of the Acts of 1730 incorporating
Wilmington, and a portion by an order of the Court Dec. 27, 1737, setting off the estates of John Beard and others from
Billerica to Wilmington.

Boxford-Georgetown Line. — Defined by chapter 253 of the Acts of 1904.

Boxford-Groveland Line.— Defined by chapter 61 of the Acts of 1856.

Boxford-Haverhill Line. — This line is a part of the old line between Bradford and Rowley; it is referred to in the
old Indian deed to Bradford, recorded under date of April 13, 1702, in the following language: —“so over Johnson’s Pond so
called to an oak tree standing at ye south easterly corner of ye Pond called Little Pond, and from thence to a run of water
on ye north side of a certain hill commonly called and known by ye name of Philistine hill, and following ye Run of water
till it come to ye Line of The Town of Andover.” The bounds between corner 3 and the Andover line appear to have been
set to mark “the run of water” therein referred to, which has practically disappeared.

Boxford-lpswich Line. —The part south of corner 1 1s described by chapter 81 of the Acts of 1846. The remainder
of the line 1s a portion of the original line between Rowley and Ipswich and agrees substantially with the official map
of 1830.

Boxford-Middleton Line. — Defined by chapter 252 of the Acts of 1904.

Boxford-North Andover Line.— This line was first established May 31, 1652, and was redefined by chapter 147 of
the Acts of 1904.

Boxford-Rowley Line. — Defined by chapter 148 of the Acts of 1904.

Boxford-Topsfield Line. — From the corner of Boxford, Ipswich and Topsfield to corner 1, the line was defined by
chapter 81 of the Acts of 1846; southerly from corner 1 it was described in reports of a committee accepted by the General
Court, dated Feb. 25, 1701, and Nov. 19, 1707.

Burlington-Wilmington Line.— This line 1s a part of the original northeasterly line of Waburn, parallel with and about
four miles distant from the southwesterly line; it is described as a single straight line in chapter 2, Acts of 1730, incorporating
Wilmington, and again in chapter 74 of the Acts of 1798, incorporating Burlington.

Danvers-Middleton Line. — Defined by chapter 12 of the Acts of 1728 incorporating Middleton. No statute has been
found definitely describing the portion of the line described as following the line between Salem and Topsfield, but the line as
marked corresponds with the official map of 1830.

Dracut-Methuen Line. — This line was a part of the original “Six mile line” of Dracut, established Feb. 26, 1702,
and 1s described in chapter 12 of the Laws of 1725, incorporating Methuen.

Groveland-Haverhill Line. — The part of this line following Merrimac river is a portion of the original southerly line
of Haverhill referred to in the incorporation of Bradford (of which Groveland was a part) in 1668 as a part of Rowley “lying
over against Haverhill”; the portion from corner 1 to the corner of Boxford, Groveland and Haverhill was defined by chapter
62 of the Acts of 1850, incorporating Groveland.

Haverhill-Merrimac Line. — This line was formerly the line between Amesbury and Haverhill; it i1s described in a
surveyor's report, approved by the General Court May 12, 1675, when the bounds of Haverhill were perfected.

Haverhill-Methuen Line.— Defined by chapter 12 of the Acts of 1725.

Haverhill-North Andover Line. — This is a part of the old line between Andover and Rowley, the present bounds of
which agree with the early map of Rowley.

Haverhill-Plaistow (N.H.) Line.— Defined by chapter 369 of the Acts of 1899.

Haverhill-Salem (N.H.) Line. — Defined by chapter 369 of the Acts of 1899.

Haverhill-West Newbury Line. — This is a part of the original southerly line of Haverhill, following Merrimac river.

Lawrence-Methuen Line. — The portion of the line from the corner of Andover, Lawrence and Methuen to Lawrence -
Methuen 2 and towards corner 1 as far as “ Londonderry turnpike,” is defined by chapter 190 of the Acts of 1847, incorpo-
rating Lawrence. The remainder of the line is defined by chapter 224 of the Acts of 1854, setting off part of Methuen to
Lawrence.

Lawrence-North Andover Line.— The part of the line from the corner of Lawrence, Methuen and North Andover
southerly to the old corner of Lawrence, Methuen and North Andover is defined by chapter 224 of the Acts of 1854; the
portion from that point southerly to corner 2 is defined by chapter 190 of the Acts of 1847, and from corner 2 to the corner

of Andover, Lawrence and North Andover the line is defined by chapter 15 of the Acts of 1879, annexing part of North
Andover to Lawrence.

FOLIO D TOWN BOUNDARY SURVEY
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Lynn-Lynnfield Line.— Defined by chapter 7 of the Acts of 1782, incorporating the North Parish of Lynn into the
town of Lynnfeld.

Lynnfield-Middleton and Lynnfield-Peabody Lines. — These lines are a part of the old boundary between Lynn and
Salem, established March 13, 1639. The present corner of Lynnfield, Middleton and Peabody was established when Middle-
ton was incorporated June 20, 1728, a portion of Salem being set off to Middleton at that time.

Lynnfield-North Reading Line. — The straight portions of this line were defined by chapter 238 of the Acts of 1857;
the portion following Ipswich river is a part of the old boundary of Lynn, as shown on the early maps.

Lynnfield-Reading Line. — Defined by chapter 361 of the Acts of 19053.

Lynnfield-Saugus Line. — Defined by chapter 407 of the Acts of 1901.

Lynnfield-Wakefield Line. — The corner of Lynnfield, Saugus and Wakefield was a point on the old line between
Lynnfield and Wakefield, established by chapter 407 of the Acts of 1901. The line itself was defined in a report of Com-
missioners dated Sept. 26, 1870, under authority of chapter 153 of the Acts of the same year.

Methuen-North Andover Line. — Defined as following Merrimac river by chapter 12 of the Laws of 1725.

Methuen-Pelham (N.H.) and Methuen-Salem (N.H.) Lines. — Defined by chapter 369 of the Acts of 1899.

Middleton-North Andover Line.— Defined by chapter 251 of the Acts of 1904.

Middleton-North Reading Line. — This line between corners 1 and 2 formed the southwesterly boundary of Governor
Bellingham’s farm, laid out Oct. 8, 1662, by order of the General Court; it was also a portion of the eastern boundary of a
tract of land granted to the town of Reading by the General Court prior to 1666 and described in the Court Records of that
although the ofhcial

year. A plan of this tract on file in the Archives gives this boundary as straight between corners 1 and 2,

plan of 1830 of Middleton shows numerous slight deflections from a straight line. The portion of the line from corner 3
southwesterly to Ipswich river originally formed a part of the boundary between Reading and Salem. Otherwise the line is
defined by chapter 12 of the Acts of 1728, incorporating Middleton.
Middleton-Peabody Line. — Defined by chapter 12 of the Acts of 1728.
the southern and eastern boundaries of either Ezra Putnam’s or John Buxton's farms.

Middleton-Topsfield Line. — Defined by chapter 12 of the Acts of 1728.
diverted and the northeasterly branch has been obliterated. At these places the location of the boundary line has been marked

The straight line portion probably formed

A portion of Nichols brook has been

with granite monuments.
North Andover-North Reading Line. — Defined by chapter 149 of the Acts of 1904.
North Reading-Reading Line. — Defined by chapter 71 of the Acts of 1853.
North Reading-Wilmington Line.— Defined by chapter 2
Reading-Stoneham Line. — This line was fixed by order of the Court April 5, 1751, confirming a report of the Com-

of the Acts of 1730, incorporating Wilmington.

mittee of the towns of Stoneham and Reading, which then included Wakefield, dated June s, 1750.

Reading-Wakefield Line.— The portion of the line from the corner of Stoneham, Reading and Wakefield to corner 3
was defined July 13, 1769, when the South precinct of Reading was divided; the remaining portion of the line was established
by chapter 71 of the Acts of 1813, by which the “Eaton farms” were annexed to the Second parish of Reading.

Reading-Wilmington Line. — Defined by chapter 2 of the Acts of 1730, incorporating Wilmington.

Reading-Woburn Line.— This line is described May 29, 1644, in a report of a Committee appointed by the Court to
settle the line between Wooborn and Linn Village (called Redding).

Tewksbury-Wilmington Line. — The portion of the line northeast of corner 2 was defined by chapter 2 of the Acts
of 1730, and the portion northwesterly of corner 2 was established by chapter 17 of the Acts of 1734. The location of the
corner of Billerica, Tewksbury and Wilmington was defined in a petition and order of the Court Dec. 27, 1737, setting off the
estates of John Beard and others from Billerica to Wilmington.

Wilmington-Woburn Line. — Defined by chapter 2 of the Acts of 1730, incorporating Wilmington.

The statutes defining the present boundaries of this group of towns, the material parts of which are printed at the
end of this preface, are as follows: —

1639, March 13, Massachusetts Colony Records, — line between Lynn and Peabody defined.

1639, September 9, Massachusetts Colony Records, — grant of additional land, known as “Linn Village™ to Lynn.

1644, May 27, Massachusetts Colony Records,— Linn Village incorporated as Redding. (Not printed.)

1644, May 29, Massachusetts Colony Records, — line between Wooborne and Linn Village (now Reading) defined.

1650, May 23,

1658, May 26,

acres, set off to Andover.

Massachusetts Colony Records, —an island in Merrimac river granted to Haverhill.
Massachusetts Colony Records, —an area of meadow land near Shawsheen river, not exceeding fifteen

(Not printed.)
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1662, October 8, Massachusetts Colony Records, — Richard Bellingham'’s farm laid out. (Not printed.)

1666, May 23, Massachusetts Colony Records, — grant of two miles laid out to Reading.

1675, May 12, Massachusetts Colony Records, — line between Haverhill and Merrimac defined.

1685, August 12, Massachusetts Colony Records, — Rowley Village incorporated into a township, afterwards Boxford.
(Not printed.)

1701, February 25, —report of committee on Boxford —Topsfield line.

1702, February 26, Massachusetts Court Records, —land beyond Chelmsford, north of Merrimac river, incorporated as
Dracut. (Not printed.)

1707, November 19, Massachusetts Court Records, — report of committee defining the Boxford—Topsfield line.

1725, Chapter 12, — part -of Haverhill incorporated as the town of Methuen.

1728, Chapter 12,— parts of Salem, Topsfield, Boxford and Andover incorporated into the town of Middleton.

1730, Chapter 2, — northeasterly part of Woburn and westerly part of Reading incorporated as the town of Wilmington.

1733, June 13, Massachusetts Court Records, —decision of the General Court that the whole of Abraham Jacques’ farm
shall belon'g to Wilmington.

1734, December 21, Massachusetts Court Records, — parts of Malden and Reading (now Wakefield) set off to Stone-
ham. (Not printed.)

1734, Chapter 17, — northerly and northeasterly parts of Billerica incorporated into the town of Tewksbury.

1737, December 13, Massachusetts Court Records, — pait of the line between Billerica and Wilmington defined.

1737, December 27, Massachusetts Court Records, —farms of John Beard and others set off from Billerica to Wilming-

ton and line confirmed.

1750, June 5, Massachusetts Archives Vol. 115, —line between Reading and Stoneham defined in committee report.
(Includes part of Wakefield line.)
1751, April 5, Massachusetts Court Records, — line between Reading and Stoneham confirmed.

1769, July 13, Massachusetts Court Records, — part of the line between Reading and Wakefield defined.

1782, Chapter 7, — North parish of Lynn incorporated as the district of Lynnfield. (Made a town February 28, 1814.)
1798, Chapter 74, — part of Woburn incorporated as the town of Burlington. (Not printed.)

1808, Chapter 13, —estate of Samuel Spofford set off from Rowley to Boxford. (Not printed.)

1812, Chapter 131, — First or South parish of Reading incorporated as the town of South Reading. (Not printed.)
1813, Chapter 71,— Eaton farms set off from South Reading and annexed to Reading. (Not printed.)

1846, Chapter 81,— part of Ipswich annexed to Boxford.

1847, Chapter 190, — parts of Andover and Methuen incorporated as the town of Lawrence.

1850, Chapter 62, — easterly part of Bradford incorporated as the town of Groveland.

1853, Chapter 71, — incorporation of North Reading and line between North Reading and Reading and a portion of
the line between Lynnfield and Reading defined.
1854, Chapter 224, — part of Methuen annexed to Lawrence.

1855, Chapter 150, — northeasterly part of Andover incorporated as the town of North Andover.

1856, Chapter 61,— part of Boxford annexed to Groveland.

1857, Chapter 238, — line between Lynnfield and North Reading defined.

1868, Chapter 32, —name of South Reading changed to Wakefield. (Took effect June 30, 1868.) (Not printed.)
1870, Chapter 153, — line between Lynnfield and Wakefield defined.

1870, September 26, — report of commissioners on the line between Wakefield and Lynnfield.
1876, Chapter 131, — part of Amesbury incorporated as the town of Merrimac. (Not printed.)
1879, Chapter 11, — part of Andover annexed to Lawrence.

1879, Chapter 15,— part of North Andover annexed to Lawrence.

1896, Chapter 365, — Bradford annexed to Haverhill.

1897, Chapter 284, —a small part of Boxford set off to Georgetown. (Not printed.)

1899, Chapter 369, — line between Massachusetts and New Hampshire established.

19o1, Chapter 407, —line between Lynnfield and Saugus established.

1903, Chapter 373, —line between Andover and Tewksbury established.

1904, Chapter 147, — line between Boxford and North Andover defined.

1904, Chapter 148, —line between Boxford and Rowley defined.

1904, Chapter 149, —line between North Andover and North Reading defined.

1904, Chapter 251,— line between Middleton and North Andover defined.

1904, Chapter 252, —line between Boxford and Middleton defined.

1904, Chapter 253, —line between Boxford and Georgetown defined.

1905, Chapter 361, —line between Reading and Lynnfield established.
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PRESENT BOUNDARIES.

(ALL COURSES ARE TRUE BEARINGS.)

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF ANDOVER AND DRACUT.

Beginning at the corner of Andover, Dracut and Methuen, an unmarked point in the middle of Merrimac river south
10 °37" east and about oo feet distant from the witness mark, a rough bowlder, marked b wu, situated 100 feet from the north-
western shore of the river; thence southwesterly along the middle of the river to the corner of Andover, Dracut and Tewks-
bury, an unmarked point in the middle of the river north 56° 59" west and about 400 feet distant from the witness mark, a

dressed granite monument marked A T 1903 and situated about 20 feet from the southerly bank of the river.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ANDOVER AND THE CITY OF LAWRENCE.

Beginning at the corner of Andover, Lawrence and North Andover, a rough granite monument marked *“* and situ-

ated on the westerly side of High street, Andover, or Railroad street, North Andover, at a point about 1,000 feet southerly
from its intersection with Salem Turnpike; thence north 68° 18" west 4,826 feet to corner 1, a rough granite monument marked
A v and situated in a garden, 200 feet southwesterly from the intersection of Chickering street with the Boston & Maine
railroad ; thence south 77° 00" west 9,464 feet to corner 2, a granite monument marked A L and situated on the southeasterly
corner of North street and Mount Vernon street, opposite Greenwood road; thence north 6° 55 west 7,490 feet to the corner
of Andover, Lawrence and Methuen, an unmarked point in the middle of Merrimac river, north 7° 59" west and about 650 feet
distant from the south witness mark, a granite monument, marked A L, standing in open pasture, about 40 feet southwesterly
from the bank of the canal, which runs parallel with the southerly shore of the river, and south 7° 40" east and about 750 feet
distant from the north witness mark, a rough granite monument marked L M, which stands on the southerly slope of a hill,

about 200 feet northeasterly from the shore of the river.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF ANDOVER AND METHUEN.

Beginning at the corner of Andover, Lawrence and Methuen, an unmarked point in the middle of Merrimac river north
7° 59" west and about 650 feet distant from the south witness mark, a granite monument, marked a 1, standing in open pasture,
about 4o feet southwesterly from the bank of the canal, which runs parallel with the southerly shore of the river, and south
7° 40" east and about 750 feet distant from the north witness mark, a rough granite monument marked r m, which stands on
the southerly slope of a hill, about 200 feet northeasterly from the shore of the river; thence westerly and southwesterly along
the middle of the river to the corner of Andover, Dracut and Methuen, an unmarked point in the middle of the river south
10° 37 east and about soo feet distant from the witness mark, a rough bowlder, marked p m, situated 100 feet from the north-

western shore of the river.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF ANDOVER AND NORTH ANDOVER.

Beginning at the corner of Andover, Lawrence and North Andover, a rough granite monument marked * "% and situ-
ated on the westerly side of High street, Andover, or Railroad street, North Andover, at a point about 1,000 feet southerly
from its intersection with Salem Turnpike; thence south 60° 43" east 1,765 feet to corner 1, a rough granite monument marked
A% and situated 1n a cultivated field, 225 feet southwesterly from the intersection of Peters street with Salem Turnpike in North
Andover; thence south 28 57" east 29,277 feet to the corner of Andover, North Andover and North Reading, a rough gran-
ite monument, marked a r, situated in woodland, on the summit of Osgood’s hill, 153 feet easterly from the northeast corner

of a wall.
LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF ANDOVER AND NORTH READING.
Beginning at the corner of Andover, North Andover and North Reading, a rough granite monument marked A r and
situated in woodland, on the summit of Osgood’s hill, 153 feet easterly from the northeast corner of a wall; thence south
83° 26" west 16,055 feet to the corner of Andover, North Reading and Wilmington, a rough granite monument marked a r w

and situated in woodland, in a wall, at a point 35 feet from its eastern end.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF ANDOVER AND TEWKSBURY.

Beginning at the corner of Andover, Tewksbury and Wilmington, a rough granite monument, marked a T w, situated in
a partly grown over pasture, about 100 feet easterly from the wall on the easterly side of the Boston & Maine railroad; thence
north 49° 57" west 5,488 feet to the witness mark to corner 1, a rough granite monument, marked a T, situated in open meadow
on the southerly side of the Shawsheen river; thence in the same direction about 320 feet to the true corner in the middle
of the river; thence northeasterly along the middle of Shawsheen river to corner 2, an unmarked point in the middle of the

river opposite the witness mark; thence north 56° 56" west about 150 feet to the witness mark, a dressed granite monument
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marked A T 1903, and situated in woodland, about 100 feet north of the bank of the river; thence in the same direction 26,528
feet to the witness mark to the corner of Andover, Dracut and Tewksbury, a dressed granite monument marked A T 1903 and

situated about 20 feet from the southerly bank of Merrimac river; thence in the same direction about 400 feet to the true cor-

ner in the middle of the river.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF ANDOVER AND WILMINGTON.

Beginning at the corner of Andover, North Reading and Wilmington, a rough granite monument marked A r w and
situated in woodland in a wall, at a point 35 feet from 1ts eastern end; thence north 46° 03" west 2,168 feet to corner 1, a
rough granite monument, marked A w, situated on the northerly slope of a wooded hill; thence north 60° 42" west 612 feet to
corner 2, a rough granite monument, marked A w, situated on the southeasterly side of a wood-road, at the western end of a
wall ; thence north 25° 13" west 1,799 feet to corner 3, a rough granite monument, marked a w, situated in woodland on the
westerly side of Woburn street; thence north 15° 49" west 568 feet to corner 4, a granite monument, marked A w, set in a
small pile of stones, and situated on high, wooded land 20 feet east of a wall; thence north 25° 27" west 1,280 feet to corner
5, a granite monument, marked A w, set in concrete masonry on the southerly slope of a wooded knoll, about 150 feet west-
erly from a junction of wood-roads; thence north 63° 45" west 1,731 feet to corner 6, a rough granite monument, unmarked,
situated on the northerly brow of a wooded hill, 275 feet southeasterly from the junction of River street with Junction road
in Andover; thence south 79° 34" west 587 feet to corner 7, a rough granite monument, marked A w, situated on the northwest-
erly brow of a wooded hill, about 500 feet southwesterly from the junction of River street with Junction road in Andover; thence
south 37° 0o’ west 910 feet to corner 8, a rough granite monument, marked A w, situated on the easterly side of Ballardvale
street, called River street in Andover; thence south 6° 35" west 1,476 feet to corner 9, a rough granite monument, marked a w,
situated 5.5 feet east of the wall on the westerly side of Ballardvale street; thence south ¢° 25" west 480 feet to corner 10,
a rough granite monument, marked A w, situated in an orchard, 9 feet west of a wall on the westerly side of Ballardvale
street; thence south 19° 56" west go8 feet to corner 11, a rough granite monument, marked A w, situated in cultivated land,
11 feet west of the wall on the westerly side of Ballardvale street; thence south 33° 46’ west 1,409 feet to corner 12, a rough
granite monument, marked A w, situated in low, cultivated land, about 300 feet easterly from the center of the Boston &
Maine railroad tracks; thence south 44° 15" west 129 feet to corner 13, a rough granite monument, marked a w, situated in
cultivated land ; thence south 10° 35" west 1,420 feet to the corner of Andover, Tewksbury and Wilmington, a rough granite
monument, marked A T w, situated in a partly grown over pasture, about 100 feet easterly from the wall on the easterly

side of the Boston & Maine railroad.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ATKINSON (N.H.) AND THE CITY OF HAVERHILL.

Beginning at the corner of Atkinson, N. H., Haverhill and Plaistow, N.H., a dressed granite monument marked s
- - . - . .l‘m
and yi and situated 2 feet west of the wall on the easterly side of Hilldale avenue, about 375 feet southerly from its junction

1890

with Main street in Atkinson; thence north 73° 13" west 4,722 feet to corner 1, a dressed granite monument marked yis and
A ) . . , 1890
v and situated in a partly grown over pasture, about 950 feet southerly from George A. Sawyer's house; thence south
FOOT - 4

. A .
64° 34 west 4,526 feet to corner 2, a dressed granite monument marked NI oand e

i . ] . P'ROCT()R ; !
the westerly side of North Broadway, about 430 feet northerly from its junction with Crystal street in Haverhill; thence south

and situated 2 feet east of the wall on

62” 03" west 5,651 feet to the corner of Atkinson, N. H., Haverhill and Salem, N. H., a dressed granite monument marked

,“.. AS - ; :
" and xH and situated on the northerly slope of a wooded knoll, about 60 feet southerly from the intersection of a
CAPT'S POND . J

wood-road with a wall.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF BILLERICA AND WILMINGTON.

Beginning at the corner of Billerica, Tewksbury and Wilmington, an unmarked point in the middle of Shawsheen river
north 357 27" west and about 30 feet distant from the witness mark, a rough granite monument, marked B T w, situated on the
easterly bank of the river, 39 feet northeasterly from the center of the bridge at the junction of Nichols avenue with Brown
street; thence southerly along the middle of Shawsheen river to corner 1, an unmarked point in the middle of the river oppo-
site the witness mark; thence south 38° 35" east about 70 feet to the witness mark, a rough granite monument, marked B w,
situated on a slight elevation in open meadow, about 35 feet south of the bank of the river: thence in the same direction 22
feet to corner 2, a rough granite monument, marked B w, situated in woodland at the northwestern end of a wall and 200 feet
south of Shawsheen river; thence south 46° 12 east 3,414 feet to corner 3, a rough granite monument, marked B w, situated
in woodland, against the southerly side of a wall, at an angle in the same: thence south 51° z0 west 863 feet to corner 4, a
rough granite monument, marked B w, situated in a narrow strip of woodland on the southerly side of a cultivated field ; thence
south 59° 40" east 245 feet to corner 5, a rough granite monument, marked B w, situated in woodland, at the northwestern end

of a wall; thence south 24° 03" east 514 feet to corner 6, a granite monument, marked B w, situated in woodland, at the northern
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end of a wall; thence south 8° 39" west 1,394 feet to corner 7, a granite monument, marked B w, situated in woodland, at the
westerly side of an angle in a wall; thence south 84° 46" west 477 feet to corner 8, a granite monument, marked B w, situated
at the westerly edge of woodland, about 200 feet south of a street known as Aldrich road in Wilmington; thence south 49° 55’
east 484 feet to corner 9, an unmarked point in the middle of Lubbers brook, south 39° 29" west and s feet distant from the
witness mark, a granite monument, marked B w, situated on low, partly open meadow on the northerly bank of the brook;
thence easterly along the middle of the brook to the corner of Billerica, Burlington and Wilmington, an unmarked point in
the middle of the brook north 25° o9’ east and about 10 feet distant from the witness mark, a granite monument, marked B ® w,

situated 1n a swamp covered with a thick growth of bushes and trees, 4 feet from the westerly bank of the brook.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF BOXFORD AND GEORGETOWN.

Beginning at the corner of Boxford, Georgetown and Rowley, a granite monument marked B ¢ r and formerly known
as ‘“the Three Sisters,” situated near the northeastern face of a bowlder, in woodland, at the junction of four walls; thence
north 65° 49" west 5,466 feet to corner 1, a rough granite monument, marked B G, situated in woodland, 40 feet north of the
edge of open meadow and south of a wall; thence north 86° 37 west 1,272 feet to corner 2, a rough granite monument, marked

’

B R, situated in woodland on the western slope of a hill, about 300 feet north of Bald Pate pond; thence north 81° 13’ west
1,418 feet to corner 3, a granite monument, marked B R, situated in cultivated land, about 750 feet southeasterly from the junc-
tion of Bald Pate street and Nelson street in Georgetown; thence north 89° 44" west 1,637 feet to corner 4, a rough granite
monument, marked B R, situated in open pasture, 20 feet from an angle in a wall on the southeasterly slope of Bald Pate hill;
thence north 88° 36’ west 3,412 feet to corner 5, a rough granite monument, marked B R, situated 3 feet southwesterly from a
junction of walls on the northeasterly side of the road leading from Boxford to South Groveland; thence north 26° 55 west
1,009 feet to corner 6, a rough granite monument, marked B R, situated 2 feet easterly from a retaining wall and 105 feet east-
erly from the southeast corner of a dwelling-house; thence north 43° 48" west 309 feet to corner 7, a granite monument, marked
B R, situated in woodland, on the eastern slope of a hill and about 200 feet northerly from the northwest corner of a dwelling-
house ; thence north 16° 52" west 5,083 feet to the corner of Boxford, Georgetown and Groveland, a rough granite monument,
marked B R, situated near the northwestern corner of a wall and 33 feet south of the center of the traveled way of Pine Plains
road.,
LINE BETWEEN THE TOWNS OF BOXFORD AND GROVELAND.

Beginning at the corner of Boxford, Georgetown and Groveland, a rough granite monument, marked s R, situated near
the northwestern corner of a wall and 33 feet south of the center of the traveled way of Pine Plains road; thence north
54° 20" west 9,017 feet to the corner of Boxford, Groveland and Haverhill, a granite monument, marked B 8 G, situated in water,

at an outlet of Johnson’s pond, 7 feet southeasterly of the wall on the northwesterly side of Centre street, Groveland.

LINE BETWEEN THE TOWN OF BOXFORD AND THE CITY OF HAVERHILL.

Beginning at the corner of Boxford, Groveland and Haverhill a granite monument, marked B B G, situated in water, at
an outlet of Johnson's pond, 7 feet southeasterly from the wall on the northwesterly side of Centre street, Groveland; thence
north 88° 46" west 3,550 feet to corner 1, a rough granite monument, marked B B, situated near an angle in a wall dividing
woodland north from cultivated land south; thence north 38° 37" west 850 feet to corner 2, a rough granite monument, unmarked,
situated on the northerly side of the road skirting the southerly shore of Chadwicks pond; thence north 69° 11" west 2,248 feet
to corner 3, a rough granite monument, marked B B, situated at the northeasterly corner of a wall at the high-water line of
Chadwicks pond; thence south 83° 13" west 1,671 feet to corner 4, a rough granite monument, marked B B, situated 3 feet south-
west of a wall at a point g feet from its southeastern end, on the westerly shore of Days Mill pond; thence north 60° 56" west
619 feet to corner 5, a rough granite monument, unmarked, situated near an angle in a wall dividing woodland north from
cultivated land south; thence north 89° 0o’ west 642 feet to corner 6, a rough granite monument, unmarked, situated in wood-
land near a junction of walls; thence south 65° 46" west 1,581 feet to corner 7, a rou<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>